# CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet Members for Children & Families, Safer & Stronger Communities and Performance & Capacity held on Monday, 20th December, 2010 at Committee Suite 1 & 2, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

## **PRESENT**

Councillor D Brown, Cabinet Member for Performance & Capacity (in the Chair)

Councillor Rachel Bailey, Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities Councillor H Gaddum, Cabinet Member for Children & Families

## **ALSO PRESENT**

Councillor Rhoda Bailey, Cabinet Support Member for Children & Families

### **OFFICERS**

Finton Bradley, Head of Strategy, Planning & Performance Kate Khan, Solicitor Paul Jones, Democratic Services Team Manager Jo Rozsich, Head of Communications Mark Thornton, Project Adviser, Early Years and Childcare Rachel Graves, Democratic Services Officer

# 1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies were received.

## 2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Rachel Bailey declared an interest in Item 7 – Crewe and Nantwich Twinning Association (CANTA) – Request for Grant, as she was a past member of CANTA.

# 3 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos. 11 and 35, a total period of 10 minutes was allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to its work.

Two members of CANTA - Mr T Lightfoot and Mr C Mosby, addressed the meeting in relation to Item 6 – Crewe and Nantwich Twinning Association (CANTA) – Request for Grant.

#### 4 CLEDFORD PRIMARY SCHOOL - CHANGE OF AGE RANGE

The Cabinet Member for Children & Families considered a report on a proposal to change the age range from 4-11 to 3-11 years old at Cledford Primary School, Middlewich. A change in the age range would enable the school to continue to provide the Free Early Education Entitlement to children aged 3 and 4 years

Cledford Infant and Junior Schools amalgamated in January 2009 to create Cledford Primary School. The age range of the School was 4 to 11 years old. Due to the Local Government Review and changes in project leads, Officers were unclear why this was the case when the new school included a nursery. At present the nursery was operating under the Governors' powers to temporarily extend the age range of the school for a period of up to 2 years. This would expire on 31 December 2010.

The proposal to change the age range at Cledford Primary School from 4-11 to 3-11 years was a prescribed alteration under the Education and Inspections Act 2006 and consultation had been carried out in accordance with the statutory process. Twenty two formal responses had been received, with nineteen supporting the proposal and three against.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the Cabinet Member for Children and Families approve the change of age range from 4-11 to 3-11 years old at Cledford Primary School, Middlewich.

# 5 RE-ADOPTION OF PART II OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976

The Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities considered a report which detailed proposals to re-adopt the provisions of Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 within the Borough of Cheshire East.

Re-adoption of the legislation was proposed in order to consolidate the three previous resolutions of the predecessor district authorities into one resolution and to ensure certainty in any enforcement action taken under the legislation.

Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 contained provisions in relation to the licensing of private hire and hackney carriage vehicles, drivers and operators.

The Licensing Committee, at its meeting on 8 November 2010, resolved to recommend to the Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities that they authorise the Borough Solicitor to provide notice, in accordance with section 45 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976,

of the Council's intention to re-adopt the provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act in relation to the Council's administrative area.

## **RESOLVED:**

That the Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities

- (1) note the legislative position, as outlined in the Report, and express the intention to pass a resolution to adopt the provisions of Part 11 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.
- (2) authorise the Borough Solicitor or an officer acting on their behalf to provide notice, in accordance with section 45 of the Local Government Act (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, of the Council's intention to pass a resolution to adopt the provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act in relation to the Council's administrative area.

# 6 CREWE & NANTWICH TWINNING ASSOCIATION (CANTA) - REQUEST FOR GRANT

The Cabinet Member for Performance & Capacity considered a report on a request from the Crewe and Nantwich Twinning Association (CANTA) for grant funding.

CANTA was the twinning association for the former Borough of Crewe and Nantwich and therefore its remit extended to the former Borough's Wards.

The Council was undertaking a review of twinning activity for the whole of the East Cheshire Borough, which would have an impact in the future of its relationship with CANTA. The emerging policy was for the Council to withdraw from civic and ceremonial twinning and encourage and support local groups to continue with the historical links from the demised authorities.

In the mean time requests for grant funding would be dealt with as they arose.

Provision of £17,000 had been made for twinning in the Council's Revenue Budget for 2010/11 and was held by Democratic Services. No spend had occurred from this budget during 2010/11.

CANTA had made a response to the Council's review of twining arrangements and had included in this submission a further request for funding. Crewe and Nantwich Borough Council used to provide an annual grant to CANTA in the sum of £5000. CANTA had received £5000 from Cheshire East Council during 2009/10 financial year.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the Cabinet Member for Performance & Capacity approve a grant of £5000 to the Crewe and Nantwich Twinning Association (CANTA) in the current financial year.

(Note: Councillor Rachel Bailey declared an interest in this item as she was a past member of CANTA)

# 7 MEDIA RELATIONS PROTOCOL

The Cabinet Member for Performance & Capacity considered a report which sought approval for minor changes to the Council's Media Relations Protocol.

The Media Relations Protocol was required to guide Elected Member and Officers in their dealings with the media to ensure that best practice was followed in enhancing and protecting the reputation of the Council.

## **RESOLVED:**

That the Cabinet Member for Performance & Capacity approve the proposed minor changes to the Council's Media Relations Protocol, as explained in Appendix B to the Report.

The meeting commenced at 9.15 am and concluded at 9.40 am

Councillor D Brown